M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 15, 2003
9: 04 AM

TAPES

SFC-03 # 49, Side A
SFC 03 # 49, Side B
SFC 03 # 50, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Lyda Green convened the neeting at approximately 9:04 AM
PRESENT

Senator Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Con Bunde, Vice Chair
Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

Al so Attending: RON MLLER Executive Director, Al aska Industrial
Devel opnent and Export Authority; STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor,
Division of Comunity and Business Devel opnent, Departnent of
Community and Econom c Developnent; ROBERT FLINT, Attorney
representing Teck Cominco Alaska;, MKE BARRY, Chair, Board of
Directors, Alaska Industrial Devel opnment and Export Authority;

Attending via Tel econference: From an offnet |ocation: STEVE
BRANCHFLOVWER, Director, Ofice of Victins® Rights, and forner
Director of the Medicaid Fraud Control Unit, Departnent of Health
and Social Services; RANDALL SCHLAPIA, Unit WManager, Provider
Revi ew and Rate Setting, Division of Medical Assistance, Departnent
of Health and Social Services; JACK N ELSON, Executive Director,
Medi cai d Rate Advisory Conm ssion, Division of Medical Assistance,
Departnent of Health and Social Services; DON Kl TCHEN, Assi stant
Attorney General, Medicaid Provider Fraud, Ofice of Special
Prosecutions and Appeals, Crimnal D vision, Departnent of Law,

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

HB 75- APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS

SFC- 03 (1) 04/ 15/ 03



HB 76- APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

The Commttee adopted a conmttee substitute incorporating the
reconmendat i ons of the budget subconmm ttees.

HB 112- Al DEA : BONDS & MJUNI Cl PAL TAX EXEMPTI ON

The Committee heard from the Alaska Industrial Devel opnent and
Export Authority, the Departnent of Comunity and Econom c
Devel opnent and Teck Cominco Al aska. The bill was held in
Commi ttee.

SB 41- MEDI CAL CARE: CRI MES, COSTS, AUDI TS

The Comm ttee heard fromthe sponsor, the Ofice of Victins R ghts,
and the Departnent of Law. An anendnent was consi dered, anended and
adopted and the bill reported fromCommittee.

#HB/5
#HB76

CS FOR SS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 75(FIN) am(brf sup maj fld)

"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and | oan
program expenses of state governnent, for certain prograns,
and to capitalize funds; and providing for an effective date."

AND
CS FOR SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 76(FIN)
"An Act nmaking appropriations for the operating and capital

expenses of the state's integrated conprehensive nental health
program and providing for an effective date."

Senat or Tayl or noved for adoption of CS HB 75, 23-GHL002\X as a
wor ki ng draft.

There was no objection and the commttee substitute Version “X' was
ADOPTED as a working draft.

Co-Chair WI ken noved for adoption of CS HB 76, 23-GHL004\Q as a
wor ki ng draft.

W thout objection the commttee substitute Version “Q@ was ADOPTED
as a working draft.

AT EASE 9: 07 AM/ 9:08 AM

SFC- 03 (2) 04/ 15/ 03



Co-Chair WIlken chaired the remai nder of the neeting.
#HB112

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 112(FIN)

"An Act relating to the authority of the Al aska Industrial
Devel opnent and Export Authority to issue bonds and to a
muni ci pal tax exenption for certain assets and projects of the
Al aska Industrial Developnment and Export Authority; and
providing for an effective date."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Committee.

Co-Chair WIken stated this bill, requested by the Governor,
contains two sections. He explained, “Section 1 extends the

statutory authority of AIDEA [Al aska Industrial Devel opnment and
Export Authority] to issue bonds not to exceed $10 nmillion for
devel opnment of projects until July 1, 2007. Section 2 repeals the
sunset provision and permanently provides for a tax exenption to
t he DeLong Mountain transportation system”

RON M LLER, Executive Director, Al aska Industrial Devel opnent and
Export Authority (AIDEA) and Al aska Energy Authority (AEA), read
testinmony into the record as foll ows.

This bill would extend AIDEA s general bonding authority to
July 1, 2007 and wthout this extension we would need
| egi sl ative authorization to i ssue bonds to devel op projects
under $10 million. Wd also be restricted from using any
bonds to finance the purchase of | oan participations w thout
| egi sl ative authori zati on.

Exanpl es of bond issues that we’ve had in the past that fel
within this exception are bond series 1995A, $8, 500,000 of tax
exenpt funds, for loan participation nmade to the Kodi ak Fi sh
Wheel Conpany for fish byproduct processing plant, [and] $7
mllion AIDEA revolving fund bonds series 1991Am which
provi ded tax exenpt funds for the expansion and i nprovenent of
t he Unal aska Marine Center.

[The] following requirenments within our statutes are not
affected by HB 112: all devel opnent projects over $10 mllion
for which bonds are to be issued would still require
| egi sl ative authorization prior to issuing the bonds, and
prior to issuing bonds over $6 million, AIDEAis required to
receive approval from the local government in which the

SFC- 03 (3) 04/ 15/ 03



project is to be located. That provision will not be affected
by this bill, and all devel opnent projects for which bonds are
to be issued require AIDEA to make findings that the project
is economcally and financially feasible.

What this bill does is gives us another tool in our portfolio
for financing projects. It sinply addresses a timng issue.
Wthout this authorization, we may have to wait [until the

next |egislative session] for |egislative authorization to
i ssue bonds.

Co-Chair WIken requested the witness speak to the rel evance of the
provision in Section 2 of the bill

M. Mller noted this |anguage was inserted by the House Finance
Commttee and relates to a permanent extension of the DelLong
Mount ai n Transportati on System (DMIS) tax exenption. He expl ai ned
this publicly owned system of AIDEA is connected to the Red Dog
M ne. He qualified that the current nenbership of the Al DEA board
of directors has not taken a position on this issue, the historical
precedence of AlIDEA has “assuned that Al DEA devel opnent projects
are not subject to property taxes; however private users and the
| ocal political subdivision may enter into agreenents providing for
paynents in lieu of taxes.” He inforned that Teck Com nco Al aska,
owner of the Red Dog M ne, and the Northwest Arctic Borough have a
pil ot agreenment for paynment in lieu of taxes. He furthered that the
DMIS and Teck Comi nco’s use of that system was exenpt from tax
evaluation until the year 1999, at which tine an assessnment was
made and the legislature in 2000 provided a tax exenption with a
sunset provision that expires in the current year.

Co-Chair W I ken suggested that Menbers pose questions first to
Section 1, as the two sections address different issues.

Senator Taylor asked if the current $10 million l[imtation is a
“wor kabl e nunber” or whether it is too |ow or too high. He recalled
that when this limtation was originally inposed, no specific
reason was given for determning the $10 mllion anount.

M. Mller replied that AIDEA would not be hindered by this
limtation amount. He stated that this Al DEA could function w thout
this extension for another year, although passage woul d benefit the
Authority. He explained that if a project of less than $10 mllion
were proposed during the upcom ng nonths and this authorization
were not granted, the project would be delayed until the foll ow ng
| egi sl ative session.

Senat or Hof fman asked if any of the bonds have “failed for paynment”

SFC- 03 (4) 04/ 15/ 03



that were i ssued under the current limtation.
M. MIler answered no.

Senat or Bunde asked if in the event of catastrophic failures, would
the State bear the “ultimate responsibility” for honoring the
bonds.

M. MIler responded this would depend upon the type of bond in
guestion, explaining that neither the faith nor credit of the State
or AIDEA is involved for a conduit bond. He furthered that Al DEA
has sufficient resources to secure the bonds it issues.

Co-Chair WI ken next addressed Section 2 of the bill. He detailed a
phot ograph showing the mne, a road and docking and storage
facilities, and clarified that the road shown is the subject of
di scussion [copy on file].

Co-Chair Wl ken referenced a handout titled, “Red Dog M ne ful
Val ue |Issue Hi story” distributed by the State Assessor [copy on
file] and remnded of the legislative property tax exenption
granted in the year 2000 for three years. He noted the exenption
period is approaching term nation.

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor, Division of Coomunity and Busi ness
Devel opnent, Departnent of Community and Econom ¢ Devel opnent, told
of assessnent undertaken in 1998 of the Northwest Arctic Borough
for full value determ nation purposes as required by law, which
included the Red Dog M ne. At that inspection, he infornmed that he
coll aborated with tax assessors fromthe Gty and Borough of Juneau
and the Fairbanks North Star Borough to ensure consistent
evaluations of mning facilities throughout the State. He stated
that during this review, it was discovered that certain assets of
approxi mately $154 mllion should have been included in prior full
val ue determnations but were not. He shared this information with
the Northwest Arctic Borough attorney and infornmed himthat these
itenms, which include the value of a portion of the road, the dock
facilities, and two storage facilities, would be included in the
1998 assessnent. M. Van Sant noted this determ nati on was appeal ed
to the comm ssioner of the Departnent of Community and Econom c
Devel opnent based on the argunent that the cost to the Borough, at
that tinme, would have been approximately $1.2 million in funding
for education. He pointed out that the figure includes
approxi mately $600,000 in State funding. He recal cul ated the anount
to be approxi mately $300,000 at present that would “return to the
State” resulting in the zero fiscal note for this |egislation.

Senat or Bunde asked if the $300, 000 i ncludes educati on foundation

SFC- 03 (5) 04/ 15/ 03



formul a fundi ng.
M. Van Sant affirmed.

Senator Bunde clarified this amount is not currently appropriated
el sewhere in the State.

M. Van Sant affirmed.

Co-Chair WIken pointed out that this bill requires that the State
Assessor exclude the value attributable to the assets of Al DEA from
the full value determ nation for the Northwest Arctic Borough. He
asked that because AIDEA is a State agency whether these assets
woul d be exenpt anyway.

M. Van Sant agreed that AIDEA assets are exenpt from property
taxation. However, he enphasized that the private use of those
assets by a conpany or individual, which he referred to as
“possessory interest,” is taxable under the Al aska Constitution and
statute. He gave an exanple of space |ocated at the Ted Stevens
International Airport that is |eased by Al aska Airlines in which
the airlines is assessed taxes.

Co-Chair Wlken clarified that the ownership is not taxable but
rather the ability to use and generate incone fromthat use.

M. Van Sant affirmed and noted that several State court cases have
upheld this. He listed parties involved in these cases including
Al aska I ndustrial Ar, Kodiak SeaLand, Colden Heart Wility, Kodiak
| sl and Borough and the Fairbanks North Star Borough.

Co-Chair WIken asked if the inclusion of the possessory interest
val ues for property tax purposes is a standard practice in Al aska.

M. Van Sant affirmed and told of a workshop held in 1980 with all
assessors in Alaska in which nethods established by the State of
California nmethod were adopted. He expl ained this provision applies
to assessnment for the use by a taxable entity for use of a
nont axabl e property, including State, federal, city and borough
| ands and Native all ot nents.

Co-Chair Wl ken asked if all city and borough governnents assess
these interests and the consequences of those who do not.

M. Van Sant responded that all |ocal governnments follow this
met hodol ogy, although the Mnicipality of Anchorage does not
excl usi vel y. As a result of the Minicipality of Anchorage

practices, he stated that the State has identified an additional

SFC- 03 (6) 04/ 15/ 03



$155 mllion to the full value of assets.

Senator Tayl or pointed out that the State of Al aska does not assess
tax on property.

M. Van Sant affirnmed but clarified that the State annually
calculates the full value for each community to be used for revenue
sharing and educati on fundi ng.

Senat or Tayl or understood the State perforns an eval uati on of the
assessed value of all real property in Alaska, which is utilized by
other State agencies to determine the anobunt of required | ocal
support. He noted that the State allows exenptions for property
owners over the age of 65, although does not allow exenptions for
ot her property owners. He remarked this is a uni que system

M. Van Sant explained the full value “equalizes the playing field
for all nmunicipalities”, noting that the Minicipality of Anchorage
assesses alnost all real and personal property, wth few
exenptions, while the Fairbanks North Star Borough does not asses
personal property. Therefore, he said the State calculates all
optional exenptions for each | ocal governnent. He enphasi zed that
the State does not require nunicipalities and boroughs to actually
| evy the taxes. He furthered that other states enploy this nmethod
for their formula funding cal cul ations.

Co-Chair W1 ken asked if other boroughs forned, whether the State
Assessor woul d include the value of possessory interest of mnes
| ocated within those boroughs.

M. Van Sant answered this would occur and reiterated that
possessory interest has been determned for mnes located in
exi sting boroughs.

Co-Chair WIken referenced the Fort Knox mne in the Fairbanks
North Star Borough and asked if the possessory interest has been
assessed for the road between the Steese H ghway and the m ne.

M. Van Sant replied that the road as well as the right-of-way for
the power line, which is owned by the CGolden Valley Electric
Association, is assessed. He furthered that the federal |and permt
for the road at Greens Creek in the Cty and Borough of Juneau is
al so assessed.

Senat or Tayl or asked about the power line to the Fort Knox m ne.

M. Van Sant explained that because the mne is the single source
user of the right-of-way, a possessory interest has been eval uated.

SFC- 03 (7) 04/ 15/ 03



Senator Taylor clarified that because only one custoner exists,
that customer nust pay a tax on the power line right of way.

M. Van Sant affirned.

Senator O son asked the affect of this reassessnent of possessory
i nterest on Al DEA projects.

M. Van Sant pointed out that other mne facilities pay these taxes
as a cost of business, although he was unable to respond to whet her
harmis caused.

Senator O son commented that inposition of the additional taxes
woul d not benefit the Red Dog Mne. He stated that profitable
entities are able to pay the taxes, but those that are not
profitable would “fall by the wayside”.

M. Van Sant responded that the matter consists of a taxability
i ssue and an eval uation issue. He explained that if a project were
not feasible, the evaluation would be affected; however, the
taxability of the possessory interest renains.

Co-Chair W/ ken recalled discussion regardi ng Teck Com nco Al aska
paynment in lieu of taxes and asked whether this relates to the
taxability of this property.

M. Van Sant replied it does not and detailed notor vehicle
registration fees colleted in lieu of property tax. He reiterated
the need to assess property conparably across the State.

Senator B. Stevens asked if AIDEA financing is involved in the
G eens Creek M ne and the Fort Knox M ne.

M. MIler responded that AIDEA is not involved in the Geens Ceek
M ne operation and has invested approximately $71 mllion in
financing in the Fort Knox M ne.

Senator B. Stevens asked the portion of the Fort Knox project that
Al DEA is invol ved.

M. MIller described the tax-exenpt bonds issued for a |eaching
project. He specified that AIDEA has no investnment in the
infrastructure, road or power Iine.

Senator B. Stevens asked therefore, why a project that receives no
Al DEA financing with another that does receive Al DEA financing.

SFC- 03 (8) 04/ 15/ 03



M. Van Sant responded that AIDEA financing is irrelevant. Instead,
he enphasi zed the matter relates to the taxability of the private
entity utilizing tax-exenpt property.

Senator B. Stevens questioned the conparison of possessory interest
of airport facilities used by airlines to the use of the road by
the Red Dog Mne. He explained that Alaska Airlines |eases the
property and pays a fee for sole use of the property; and has
di scretion to prohibit other parties fromusing that property. He
asked if another entity would be required to negotiate with Teck
Com nco Al aska to use the DMIS in the event another enterprise was
devel oped, such as coal m ning.

M. Van Sant understood negotiations would be nade with both Al DEA
and Teck Com nco Al aska. He stressed that the nobst recent Al aska
Suprene Court decision on the matter ruled, “A nonexclusive use
| ease was still taxable due to the extent of the possession.”

M. MIller interjected that negotiations woul d be nmade wi th Al DEA,
t he owner of the road.

M. Mller clarified his earlier statenments that AIDEA “ debt
participates” in Fort Knox although it does not “own any of that
proj ect”.

Senat or O son spoke of the interest in the success of Teck Com nco
Al aska by Governor Mirkowski and others. He asked if extension of
the tax exenption would all ow resource devel opnent to conti nue.

M. MIller replied that repeal of the tax exenption would increase
the operating costs for the Red Dog M ne. He pointed out that Teck
Com nco Al aska pays Al DEA a tonnage fee for the use of the DMIS and
that a tax would be an additional cost for utilizing the road and
port.

M. Van Sant furthered that the Minicipality of Anchorage granted a
five-year econom c exenption to the property used by the seafood
plant, which is allowable under AS 29.45.050. He expressed that
such exenptions are permtted to encourage econom c devel opnent,
al though the State considers the full value of the assets.

Senat or Hof fman noted the Fort Knox Mne project is conpletely
privately owned while Al DEA owns the road and port of the Red Dog
M ne proj ect.

Senat or Tayl or asked if the success of a business affects the val ue
of the possessory interest.

SFC- 03 (9) 04/ 15/ 03



M. Van Sant explained that the apprai ser assesses the real val ue
of the property not the business venture. He qualified this is
probl ematic, exanpling a hotel that m ght be unprofitable due to
poor nmanagenent or because “the business just isn't there”. He
stated that failure of a business to success does not necessarily
di m nish the value of that property; however, if the value of ore
dropped significantly, the value of the property would likely be
af fected.

Senat or Tayl or asked if assessnent of closed canneries |ocated in
Sout heast Al aska shoul d be assessed at highest and best market
val ue rather than at the current use of the property. He clarified
that a cannery facility could be difficult to sell as a cannery,
al though it could be easier sold as a resort.

M. Van Sant agreed and stated that if a higher value use were
possi bl e, an assessor woul d give that consideration. He pointed out
that some facilities have significant equi pnent, the val ue of which
i s dependent upon the stability of the industry market.

Senat or Taylor comrented that several seafood plants and | unber
processors no |onger in operation have decreased significantly in
val ue.

Senat or Tayl or asked the anmpunt of increased revenue to the State
if the State were to exenpt a pipeline and ot her equi prent rel ated
to the oil industry fromlocal taxation

M. Van Sant replied that the Alyeska Pipeline generates
approximately $260 nmillion in property taxes annually and that
approximately $40 of that anpunt is paid to the State.

Senat or Tayl or understood the dependence of sone conmunities on
this income to subsidize property tax revenue. He indicated this
matter should be reviewed to “level playing fields” for communities
that do not receive incone froma large industry.

ROBERT FLI NT, Attorney representing Teck Com nco Al aska, testified
that the Red Dog M ne operated for ten years wth parties under the
assunption that the public facility was not to be included in the
fair value determnation for the Northwest Arctic Borough. He noted
that the Borough contested the 1999 determ nation, although the
i ssue becane irrelevant after action by the legislature in the year
2000 to allow the exenptions.

SFC 03 # 49, Side B 09:52 AM

SFC- 03 (10) 04/ 15/ 03



M. Flint qualified, however, that the legal issues over the
assessnent remain. He listed two issues for which the challenge to
the assessnent is based, one being that the user of a public road
or facility who pays a toll does not thereby acquire a real
property interest in that public facility. He differentiated this
froma | easehold interest a private entity mght have in public
property. He exanpl ed the 55-year |ease of State |l and or | and owned
by the Al aska Railroad, which is stated is comon and al ways has
been subject to taxation. He pointed out that in | easehold interest
situations, the | easer has the authority to subcontract use of the
public facility, conpared to the DMIS, in which use by other
parties woul d be negotiated wth Al DEA. He added that paynent for
use of the road would be nmade to Al DEA rather than to Teck Com nco
Al aska.

M. Flint continued with the second argunent agai nst the assessnent
that if such possessory interest existed the proper assessnent
met hod of that interest would result in zero val ue because “a ful

| ease paynent was nade for the entire value”. He admtted that the
court ruled against this argunent in litigation involving the
Gol den Val l ey El ectric Associ ati on.

M. Flint stressed he does not expect the Legislature to act as a
board of equalization or court of appeals to decide these issues.
Rat her, he said the matter is public policy for economc
developnment in renote areas where an absence of public
infrastructure is a “strong inhibiting factor”. He pointed out the
DMIS was publicly financed to encourage resource devel opnent in
this area. He noted that extensive infrastructure exists along the
railbelt that is utilized by many parties, facilitating economc
devel opnment in that region. He expressed that the provision in
Section 2 of the commttee substitute “would appropriately
el imnate what woul d otherwi se be a discrimnation between a built
up area and a renote area.”

M. Flint next agreed that the taxation situation is a formula
driven fair value determ nation in that whatever anount is paid in
either taxes or a pilot agreenent, do not affect the fornula. He
remar ked that the primary purpose of Teck Com nco Al aska projects
is to provide jobs and the secondary purpose is to create a tax
base for the I ocal community. He reported that in the current year
Teck Comi nco Al aska woul d pay $5,850,000 to the Northwest Arctic
Bor ough under the pilot agreenent. He conpared this to the anount
that would be <collected in the event property taxes were
established and a m| rate inposed simlar to other boroughs, and
cal cul ated that Teck Com nco Al aska would pay no nore and likely a
| esser anount.

SFC- 03 (11) 04/ 15/ 03



Co-Chair WIken asked if the pilot agreement is paynent for the use
of the road but not the port or storage facilities.

M. Flint replied the contract includes use of all facilities and
amounts to approximately $17 million annually.

BOB JACKO, President, Teck Com nco Al aska testified froma mning
perspective the primary consideration is "predictabity and
consi stency”. He noted that changes inpact the financial stability
of any property. He listed |ocation as another consideration,
simlar to the |ocation of a restaurant or hotel. He expl ai ned that
the existence of a road and port facility near the Red Dog M ne
“opens up that whole region” and provides an advantage to pronote
econom ¢ devel opnent. He inforned that in the years 2000 and 2001,
a significant conpetitor was investigating ore deposits nearby and
utilized the Red Dog Mne airstrip, exploration canp and
accomodations. He stated that if significant deposits were
| ocated, the conpetitor would begin operations and subsequently
utilize the DMIS. He attributed this possibility to the existence
of the DMIS that woul d enabl e such operati ons.

M. Jacko stressed that Teck Com nco Al aska has never assuned sol e
responsibility for the DLM5S and has made efforts to ensure the
systemis available for nultiple users. He exanpled fuel transfers
to the Village of Noatak undertaken to offset fuel shortages, the
use of the facilities to transport materials to expand the church
in Noatak and build a pastor’s hone, as well as the transport of
three hones to Noatak. He furthered that buil dings no | onger used
by the Red Dog M ne have been relocated to vill ages.

M. Jacko shared that enployees of the Red Dog M ne who serve on
t he Noat ak I ndi an Reorgani zation Act (I RA) Council investigated the
possibility of connecting the DMIS to the village. He expressed
that Teck Com nco Al aska supports this venture, as it would benefit
the region. However, he pointed out Teck Com nco Alaska is not
aut hori zed to approve this venture, which nust be negotiated with
Al DEA.

M. Jacko reported that the primary extraction from the Red Dog
Mne is zinc, which is receiving the | owest prices since the G eat
Depr essi on.

Co-Chair WIlken relayed that in the sunmer of 1999 he visited the
mne as a nenber of a deferred maintenance task force. He was
“dunbstruck” at the extent of the facilities and the benefit they
provide to the area. He stated he utilizes this as a nodel of the
benefits that resource devel opnent could provide to other Al askans.

SFC- 03 (12) 04/ 15/ 03



Senator O son spoke of a “recent betrayal” to the legislative
mnority as a result of changes to taxes to the oil industry. He
stated these changes were made based on the prem se that one
| egi slature is not bound by the actions of an earlier |egislature.
He asked if the witness shares simlar concerns with the possible
change to existing agreenents.

M. Jacko agreed and expressed the elimnation of the exenption
woul d have a financial inmpact on Teck Com nco Al aska. He expl ai ned
that the Borough’s revenue would decrease approximately $1.2
mllion, which would have a “ripple effect and it will cone to us.”
He stressed the heavy reliance of the Borough on nmultiple funding
sources and that the reduction from one source would force the
Borough to generate additional funds from another, primarily Teck
Com nco Al aska.

Senator O son asked if Teck Comi nco Al aska is considering other
busi ness ventures.

M. Jacko told of a draft Environnmental |npact Statenent study
underway on a proposed project |ocated near Delta Junction. He
continued that the conpany owns additional |and around the Red Dog
M ne |ocation, although the low price of zinc nakes current
devel opnent unf easi bl e.

Senator O son asked who naintains the road.
M. Jacko responded that Teck Com nco Al aska naintains the road.

Senator O son asked if any State funds are utilized for this
purpose, particularly in the event of major damage, such as a
washout. He indicated earlier discussion regarding a car deal er who
does not pay the mai ntenance expenses on roads used to transport
the vehicles it sells.

M. Jacko responded that if significant maj or damage occurred, Teck
Com nco Al aska woul d request funding for the repairs from Al DEA
t he anbunt of which would be added to the outstanding capital debt
and repaid through toll fees.

Co-Chair WIken shared a core section of ore fromthe Red Dog M ne,
directing attention to the high concentration of ore.

Co-Chair WIlken rem nded that the matter of the DMIS arose during
the legislative session in the year 2000 in discussions on SB 248,
relating to AIDEA and rural developnent. He noted a conference
commttee inserted the exenption into that |egislation and he

SFC- 03 (13) 04/ 15/ 03



referenced May 3, 2000 mnutes from that commttee expressing
intent that time was needed to negotiate with the Borough to
resolve the issue. He asked the efforts of past three years to
recogni ze the assessor’s full val ue determ nation.

M. Flint answered that he had been naking efforts to appeal the
assessnment.

Co-Chair Wlken recalled a simlar matter involving the Gol den
Heart, which has subsequently been decided by the Al aska Suprene
Court.

M. Flint comrented that the Borough has no assessnent structure
and that the paynents are nmade through the pilot agreenent.

Co-Chair WIlken detailed the process of appealing assessnments of
his property, first to the Fairbanks North Star Borough, then to
the court if a satisfactory agreenent is not reached. He pointed
out the legislature is not part of this process and asked why the
DMIS issue has not been addressed through regular court
pr oceedi ngs.

M. Flint elaborated on the absence of a property tax structure and
ordinance in the Northwest Arctic Borough and therefore no
procedure to protest an assessnent exists. He noted the Borough
chal l enged the assessnment and reiterated the perceived econonc
devel opment policy issue, in which the legislature is a proper
forum for discussion. He noted the court is not the proper forum
for addressing econom c devel opnent policies.

Co-Chair WIken asked how the matter could be addressed in the
court systemto avoid the issue arising every five years.

M. Van Sant told of the appeal process in which the Borough could
appeal to the Departnment of Community and Econom ¢ Devel opnent
commi ssi oner then appeal further to the court. He qualified that
t he Borough could not nmake a judicial appeal at present due to the
exenption; however, if the exenption expired, an appeal could be
made in the year 2004.

Senator Taylor suggested the Borough nust first institute a
property tax and assess the anount of that tax.

M. Van Sant corrected that from the “State perspective” the
Borough has the authority to levy a tax after conpleting certain
pr ocedur es.

Senat or Tayl or readdressed the matter of assessing the value of the

SFC- 03 (14) 04/ 15/ 03



sections of the Alyeska Pipeline that are not taxed.

M. Van Sant reiterated his wearlier response that of the
approximately $260 million generated in property taxes from the
pi peline, approximately $40 is received by the State.

Co-Chair WIlken stated that specific data is published annually and
noted that several boroughs do not collect the full 20 mls
assessed, and that the balance is received by the State.

Senator Tayl or expounded upon original |egislative debate and
remarked t hat possessory interest was not the intent. He comented
on the collection of taxes from G eens Creek Mne by the Gty and
Bor ough of Juneau for the use of the State-owned road on Admralty
| sland. He expressed concern about future simlar road projects,
suggesting they should established as nonexclusive. He asked
whet her possessory interest could be determned for a party
utilizing a State-owned road to conduct business.

M. Van Sant answered no and stated the possessory interest would
apply in the event of a paynent for an exenpt use of public

property.

Senat or Tayl or spoke about authority granted to AIDEA through
| egi slation to issue bonds of up to $29 to construct a Bradfield
toll road and up to $50 million to construct the Whittier Tunnel
toll road. He asked if AIDEA funds were utilized to construct a
toll road whether commercial use of that road would be subject to a
possessory interest.

M. Van Sant responded that if the private entity has excl usive use
of the road, sonme possessory interest would probably be attached.

Senator Taylor repeated that when the DMIS was established,
| egi sl ators never assuned that utilization of the facilities would
be a taxable entity for the Borough.

M KE BARRY, Chair, Board of Directors, Alaska Industria
Devel opnent and Export Authority testified that the Red Dog M ne
project is the nost successful effort of AIDEA to create econonic
devel opnent. He contended that not all possessory interests are
“equal”, as alluded to by M. Flint. M. Barry told of the a
facility constructed at on |leased State-owned land at the Ted
St evens Anchorage International Airport wutilizing AlIDEA issued
bonds borrowed by Federal Express. He explained that Federal
Express pays property taxes on this property because it has
excl usi ve possessory interest that grants the conmpany all rights to
that facility. On the contrary, he remarked, the Red Dog M ne does

SFC- 03 (15) 04/ 15/ 03



not have exclusivity of the DMIS.

M. Barry also informed of plans for expansion of the DMIS port
facility to foster significant future devel opnent, including coa
extraction. In studying this project, he relayed it was |earned

that the creation of a fuel oil termnal to serve the 17
comunities of the Northwest Arctic region, would be feasible. He
expressed that the cost of fuel oil to rural comunities is

“probably the single greatest deternent to econom c devel opnent”
due to the high operating costs.

M. Barry next spoke to the seafood processing facility located in
Anchorage, pointing out that the Minicipality of Anchorage has
several options for offsetting the revenue |ost by granting the
facility a property tax exenption. He stressed that the Northwest
Arctic Borough, however has “no other avenues” to collect funding
for education prograns. He enphasized the matter is not whether
ot her taxpayers wthin the Borough would bear the financial
responsibility, but rather that children would not receive an
educati on.

M. Barry warned of the econom c inpacts that elimnation of this
exenption would create in the region. He stressed that potenti al
investors nust consider all operating expenses conpared to the
gl obal econony. He pointed out that Teck Com nco Al aska has
contracted with AIDEA to pay all the costs to construct and
maintain the DMIS, as well as pay the Borough in lieu of taxes to
fund education. He remarked that the tax exenption therefore
denonstrates that Al aska supports “positive devel opnent.”

Senator Bunde asked if an acceptable conpromse would be an
extension of the exenption rather than a pernmanent exenption.

M. Barry responded that approxinmately 37 years remains on the
“bond life” of the DMIS debt and that the extension should be
granted at least until the debt is paid. He indicated that studies
indicate the DMIS would have a significantly |longer useful life
than the terns of the debt.

Senator B. Stevens asked the party that would own the DMIS after
the debt is paid.

M. Barry answered Al DEA.

Co-Chair W1 ken asked the position of the Al DEA Board of Directors
on this issue.

M. Barry informed the Board would neet at the end of the current

SFC- 03 (16) 04/ 15/ 03



nont h and woul d address the issue.
Co-Chair W1 ken asked the best way to resolve this matter.

M. Barry responded that a long termexenption would be in the best
i nterest of AlIDEA and of econom c devel opnent, as “the world woul d
know what the facts are going to be.” He cautioned that it would
not be beneficial to “tie up the resources” of the Borough, which
has “mneager resources” nor the operator “that’s under a great dea
of stress in the global market today” to undergo a litigation
process.

Co-Chair WIken asked if the pilot agreenent, which expires in the
year 2012, is available for renegotiation if necessary.

M. Barry was not famliar with the terns of the agreenent.

Senat or Taylor assuned if the exenption were not extended, AlDEA
woul d seriously consider whether to finance additional inprovenents
in the area.

M. Barry responded that the matter woul d be consi dered, although
he could not predict to what extent. He stressed the biggest
probl em woul d be the uncertainty that a renoval of the exenption
woul d create

Senator B. Stevens asked the terns of the agreenent for the DMIS
between AIDEA and Teck Cominco Alaska. He understood that
possessory interest stipulates an exclusive use and asked if such
is contained in the DMIS agreenent.

M. Barry replied that a toll use agreenent is a nore appropriate
characterization of the contractual agreenent. He furthered that
Tech Com nco Al aska has agreed to pay fees to Al DEA for the use of
the DMIS, which over the Iife of the facilities would anortize the
full cost of construction and operation of the facilities.

Senator B. Stevens reiterated his understanding that possessory
interest is contingent upon exclusive rights.

M. Barry stated the DMIS agreenent is nonexcl usive.

Co-Chair WI ken announced his intent to hold the bill in Conmttee.
Senator Bunde indicated Anendnent #1, which he sponsored, was
submtted to himby Teck Com nco Al aska as a conprom se between the

“need for predictability and a total exenption”. This anendnent he
stated woul d extend the exenption to the year 2012.

SFC- 03 (17) 04/ 15/ 03



Co-Chair WIlken assured resolution to this matter would be
forthcom ng.

Senat or Tayl or expressed that rather than dealing wth the DMIS as
an isolated case, he would consider State policy on taxation “to
equal i ze across the board and across the State the manners and
met hods of taxation and exenptions there fromthat we give.”

Senat or Bunde infornmed that while he supports the Red Dog M ne
project the exenption is not wthout cost and he therefore opposes
a permanent exenption. He explained that currently, the exenption
costs other school districts approxinmately $300,000 per year,
equal i ng approxi mately $60, 000 per school district.

SFC 03 # 50, Side A 10:40 AM

Co-Chair WIken commented that it is not beneficial to the industry
or to the Northwest Arctic Borough to reargue the issue every five
years.

[ The bill was subsequently HELD in Conmittee.]

RECESS 10: 42 AM/ 2:05 PM

#SB41
CS FOR SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 41(JUD)
"An Act relating to nedical care and crines relating to
medi cal care, including nedical care and crines relating to
the nedical assi stance program catastrophic illness

assi stance, and nedical assistance for chronic and acute
nmedi cal conditions."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

[Note: Due to an audio malfunction a portion of the neeting was not
recorded. ]

Co-Chair Green, sponsor, read her testinony into the record as
fol |l ows.

Wiy do we need SB 417

SFC- 03 (18) 04/ 15/ 03



The cost of the Medicaid programin Al aska has increased an
average of 20% per year since 1999, growi ng the program
from $396 nmillion in FY 99 to $936 mllion in FY 04 (a
total increase of $540 million over 5 years).

W have limted ability to contain the mgjority of cost
factors driving these increases, such as the increasing
nunber of eligible recipients, the increased use of health
services, and the rising costs of prescription drugs and
| ong-term care.

There is evidence that waste, fraud and abuse of public
funds used to deliver Medicaid and Medicare services
exists, both in Alaska and throughout the nation
Estimates of 7% for waste and 10% for abuse are commonly
hel d percepti ons.

Al aska has no specific laws tailored toward health care
crimes, making it difficult to prosecute di shonest Medicaid
providers and keep them from continuing to abuse the
system

The Division of Legislative Audit recently released their
audit on the Dvision of Mdical Assistance Internal
Control Over Medicaid Paynents. Two recommendations from
the audit are addressed by this |egislation:

0 Recommendation No. 7 states: “DVA's director
should provide for a full-time, ongoing service
provi der audit function.”

0 Reconmendation No. 12 states: “The | egislature
shoul d consi der adopting specific crimnal
statutes related to Medicaid fraud to enhance the
Medi caid Fraud Control Unit’'s effectiveness.”

According to the audit, 46 other states have sone form of
crimnal Medicaid fraud statutes.

VWhat does SB 41 Do?

SFC- 03

It requires DHSS to contract for annual independent
financial audits to identify errors, overpaynents, and
crimnal violations within the Medi caid program

These audits conplete the communication | oop between DHSS
and Law.

o Al audits will be provided to the Attorney Cenera
for possible crimnal investigation.

o The Attorney GCeneral wll notify DHSS of any
crim nal charges brought against a Medicaid

(19) 04/ 15/ 03



provi der.
o Al crimnal charges will result in a conplete review
of outstanding clains wth DHSS.

It establishes the crime of nedical assistance fraud
defined with the cul pable nental state of “know ngly and
recklessly”. It classifies the level of crinme as a felony
or m sdeneanor based upon the aggregate val ue of charges
simlar to existing theft statutes.

e It provides a definition of “nedical purpose” in relation
to prescribing a controlled substance. The definition
provides a framework within which a prosecuting attorney
can argue whether a practitioner prescribed a drug for a
nmedi cal purpose or for another purpose.

e It allows the comm ssioner to exclude a person convicted of
medi cal assistance fraud fromparticipation in the nedica
assi stance program for a period up to 10 years follow ng
their unconditional discharge from sentence served.

Senator Taylor asked if this legislation provides for a “paper
audit” or just a field audit.

Co-Chair Geen responded that this requires that at l|east .75
percent of the total nunber of providers are audited each year. She
stated this is nore than the current nunmber of audits conducted and
al so provides a “higher |evel of investigation”. She furthered that
the legislation would require the Departnment to follow up on audit
findings and al so requires comuni cati on between the Departnent of
Law and the Departnment of Health and Social Services regarding
providers that have been prosecuted and found to be not in

conpliance. She informed that in the past, lapses in this
comuni cati on have occurred between the two departnents. She
stressed that this legislation wuld stop the Medicaid

participation of those providers found guilty of Mdicaid fraud.

Senator Taylor relayed that “a nmenber of the nedical comunity”
indicated to him that an occasional conparison of a provider’s
clains to other clains would identify any irregularities that woul d
warrant a conplete audit. Senator Tayl or requested assurances that
t he Departnent woul d conduct these reviews.

Co-Chair Green assured this was her understandi ng.
STEVE BRANCHFLOWER, Director, Ofice of Victins’ R ghts, and forner
Director of the Medicaid Fraud Control Unit, Departnent of Health

and Social Services, testified via teleconference froman off net
site that he was avail able to answer questi ons.

SFC- 03 (20) 04/ 15/ 03



RANDALL SCHLAPI A, Unit Manager, Provider Review and Rate Setti ng,
D vision of Medical Assistance, Departnent of Health and Socia
Services testified via tel econference froman offnet |ocation that
he was al so avail able to answer questions.

JACK NI ELSON, Executive Director, Medicaid Rate Advisory
Comm ssion, Division of Medical Assistance, Departnent of Health
and Social Services testified via teleconference from an offnet
| ocation that he was al so avail able to answer questions.

DON KI TCHEN, Assistant Attorney CGeneral, Medicaid Provider Fraud,
Ofice of Special Prosecutions and Appeals, Crimnal Division,
Department of Law, testified via teleconference from an offnet
| ocation that he was al so avail abl e to answer questi ons.

Senator O son asked the percentage of the audits conducted that
have resulted in questionable or egregious practices.

M. Branchfl ower responded that between July 1998 and Decenber
2002, during his tenure at the Medicaid Fraud Unit, the D vision of
Medi cai d Assi stance contracted with a national accounting firmto
conduct 164 audits at a cost of $477,250. As a result of the
findings of the audits, he informed that $2,741, 126 was recovered
and returned to the State. He further told of eight outstanding
cases at the time he left the Unit, with an additional $18 mllion
identified as overpaynents. He concluded that the audits were cost
effective and he therefore encouraged passage of the bill

Senat or Tayl or repeated Senator O son’s question of the percentage
of audits resulting in identification of fraud or questionable
practi ces.

M. Branchflower replied that 85 percent of the audits did not find
conduct that would nerit crimnal prosecution, although in al nost
all the cases, sone overpaynent was identified. He stated that in
sonme instances, substantial overpaynent was identified and because
no crimnal wongdoi ng was determ ned, these cases were referred to
the Division of Medical Assistance for the initiation of an
adm ni stration recovery, as required under federal regulations. He
was unaware of the status of the adm nistrative recovery cases.

Senator Taylor clarified that approximately 75 to 80 percent of the
audi ts found sone overpaynent was nmade and the renai ning 15 percent
warranted an additional crimnal investigation.

M. Branchfl ower affirned.

SFC- 03 (21) 04/ 15/ 03



Senator O son asked the nunber of providers charged were appealing
the findings of their audit.

M. Branchflower told of two doctors convicted and inprisoned who
are currently appealing their cases.

Senator (O son asked if the sponsor received input on this
| egi slation fromhealth care providers.

Co-Chair Green answered that she has received “very little” such
i nput .

Amendnent #1: This anmendnent changes the definition of “claint
under Sec. 47.05.290. Definitions., in Section 3 of the conmttee
substitute on page 6 lines 4 — 8. The anended | anguage reads as
fol |l ows.

(2) “clainf includes a request for paynent for
nmedi cal assi stance services under applicable state or federa
| aw or regul ations, whether the request is in an electronic
format or paper format, or both;

This anmendnent also inserts “or nedical services”, and replaces
“available to a nedical assistance recipient” with “that may
qualify for reinbursement under AS 47.07 or AS 47.08” on page 7
lines 6 and 7 in Section 3 of the conmttee substitute. The amended
| anguage of Sec. 47.05.290. Definitions., reads as foll ows.

(17) “services or nedical services” nmeans a health
care benefit that may qualify for rei nbursenent under AS 47.07
or AS 47.08, including health care benefits provided,
attenpted to be provided, or clained to have been provided to
anot her, by a nedical assistance provider, or “services” as
defined in AS 11.81.900;

Co- Chair Green noved for adoption
Co-Chair WI ken objected for an expl anati on.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General, Crimnal D vision,
Departnent of Law, noted a typographical error in the anmendnent.

Co-Chair Geen offered a notion to anend the anmendnent to insert
“assistance” followng “nedical” in Sec. 47.05.290(17) to read as
fol |l ows.

(17) “services or nedi cal assistance services” neans
a health care benefit that may qualify for rei nbursenent under

SFC- 03 (22) 04/ 15/ 03



AS 47.07 or AS 47.08, including health care benefits provided,
attenpted to be provided, or clained to have been provided to
anot her, by a nedical assistance provider, or “services” as
defined in AS 11.81.900;

The amendnent was AMENDED wi t hout obj ecti on.

Ms. Carpeneti then spoke to the anmendnent, noting that the
clarification of a definition of “claintf is preferable in crimnal
statute, as the common definition of the word is different than
that applied to a Medicaid claim

Ms. Carpeneti furthered that the clarification of “services or
medi cal services” is necessary because other services may qualify
for reinbursenent under the law, but are not necessarily avail able
to a Medicaid eligible recipient. She exanpl ed oxygen bottles.

Co-Chair WIlken clarified the witness supported the amendnent

Ms. Carpeneti affirned.

There was no objection and the anended Anendnent #1 was ADOPTED.
Senator Taylor offered a notion to report the conmttee substitute,
as anended, from Commttee wi th individual reconmendations and
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

Wthout objection CS SS SB 41 (FIN MOVED from Conmittee wth
fiscal note #1 for $66,500 fromthe Departnent of Health and Soci al
Servi ces.

#
ADJ CQURNIVENT

Co-Chair Gary WI ken adjourned the neeting at 02:20 PM

SFC- 03 (23) 04/ 15/ 03



